
lvations

El"~ERAL

ASSEMBI.JY
FORTY-SECO!\D SESSIO~

Official Records'"

FOURTH COMHI'r'J'EE
11 th meeting

held On
Monday, 12 October 1987

at 3 p.m.
New York

-------_. -~-~~--------------------------_._--------~

StMft1AFY RECORD OF THE ] 1th MFETING

Chairman: Mr. MOUSFOL~A~ (Cypru~)

CONTENTS

REQUESTS FOR HEARINGS

AGENDA ITEM 18: IMPLD1ENTATION OF THE DECLARATION ON THE GRANTING OF INDEPENDENCE
TO COLONIAL COUNTRIES AND PEOPLES (Territories not covered under other agenda
items) (continued)

Hearing of petitioners

AGENDA ITEM 36: QUESTION OF NAMIBIA

Hearing of petitioners

"This. r~coro lS subject to cerrection. Comcuons should be sent under the signature of I: member of tk dele~

S!hl'n concnnt'd ....ithill· p;l'tt' "'t't"k pj Ihr dmt of publicanon to the Chitf of the OffitiaJ Records EdllJng Sccuon.
1"l.X'lm DC:.!· i50, .:!: l'nlted ~ations Plaza, and inC'orporlted in a COP) of the record.

Distr. GENERAL
A/C.4/42/SR.ll
1fi OCtober 1987

87-56041 0607S (E)
ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

/ ...



A/C.4/42/SR.ll
Eogl ish

,Page 2

The meeting was called to order at 3.20 p.m.

REQUESTS FOR HEARINGS (A/C.4/42/6/Add.l2-l4)

1. The CHAIRMAN drew attention to three communications containing requests for a
hearing concerning Namibia (A/C.4/42/6/Add.12-14). If he heard no objection, he
would take it that the Committee decided to grant the requests.

2. It was so decided.

3. The CHAIRMAN also informed the Committee that he had received two
communications containing requests for hearings relating to western Sahara. He
suggested that, in accordance with the usual practice, the communications sh~uld be
circulated as Committee documents for consideration at a subsequent meeting.

4. It was so decid~.

AGENDA ITEM 18: IMPLEMENTATION OF THE DECLARATION ON THE GRANTING OF INDEPENDENCE
TO COLONIAL COUNTRIES AND PEOPLES (Territories not covered under other agenda
items) (continued) (A/C.4/42/2/Add.1-4, A/C.4/42/4 and Add.2 and 4)

Hearing of petitioners

5. The CHAIRMAN reminded the Committee that it had decided to grant the requests
for hearings relatir~ to the Trust Territory of the Pacific Islands and New
Caledonia (A/C.4/32/2/Add.1-4, A/C.4/42/4 and Add.2 and 4).

6. At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr. Clark (International League for Human
Rights) took a place at the petitioners' table.

7. Mr. CLARK (International League for Human Rights) said that at its forty-first
session, the General Assembly had returned New Caledonia to the list of
Non-Self-Governing Territories, and the International League for Human Rights
looked forward to the day when the other French territories in the Pacific,
French Polynesia and Wallis and Futuna, would be added to the list.

8. The decision to place a territory on the list of Nort-Self-Governing
Territories carried with it the expectation that the administering Power would
co-operate with the United Nations in following the practice developed over the
years under Article 73 of the Charter. Resolution 41/41 A had declared that France
had an obligation to transmit the information on New Caledonia under Chapter XI of
the Charter, but tr.~ administering Power had not even complied with that basic
obligation. Throughout 1987, France had also made no effort to co-operate with the
Specia.l Committee on decolonizatlon in its examination of the TE'r ri tory. Moreover,
the referendum carried out in the Territory on 13 September 1987 had been in
complete disregard of United Nations practice.

/ .. "



A/C.4/42/flR.ll
Engliflh
Page]

(Mr. Clark)

9. Firstly, France had failed to involve t.he Unit.ed Nations in the electoral
procese and had 81 .rned the approach•• of the Special Committee on decolonization.
Secondly, the options presented ~o the electorate in the referendum hsd been eith.r
that of remaining in the French Republic or of acceding to indePendence, in
disregard of the third option eet out in resolution 1541 (XV), naMely, free
asaociation with an independent State. There had never been any caretul di.cussion
of the free-association option and its essential condition - the power of the
associated state to opt out of the arrangement unilaterally. Thirdly, there
appeared to have been no attempt to mount an unbiased campaign of political
education, a common concept in United Nations practice.

10. That problem had been exacerbated by the inability of those opposed to the
French pre.ence to gain fair acce•• to the media or otherwise expres8 their views.
That, in turn, wa. due partly to the presence of some 8,000 military and
paramilitary personnel, a vote de.igned to achieve a foragor.e conclusion and
generous funding to encourage a vote favourable to the administering Power. The
counterfeit referendum of 13 September had solved nothing and had been duly
repudiated by the State. of the region. The United Nations must try again to
achieve the adminiatering Power's complianf,e with the Organizations's
decolonization practice. "s a start, the International League of Human Rjjht~

commended the text of draft r ••olution I put forward by the special Committee on
decolonization.

11. With regard to the Trust Territory of the Pncific Islands, two disappointing
features emerged trom the relatively recent history of the Territory: the
surprisingly large number of illegal actions which had occurred and the manner in
which the Trustee.hip Council had nearly always found a way to avoid taking a stand
on such legal issue8. Par example, the Council had not been prepared to examine
whether the 8o-calle~ ComMOnwealth status for the Northern Mariana I8lands and
-free association- for the other three entities represented genuine acts of
self-determination.

12. Neither had the Council reacted to the International League's criticiam that
the then-pending referendwr in Palau had not been in compliance with the empowering
legi.lation or to condelll'lat.Lon of the referendulM held in February 191)3 and
May 1986, where the major ity achieved ha..': not been large enough to meet the manda:e
of the Palau Constitution, wh08e nl~lear-control provisions had required a
75 per cent majoricy. In all the above cases, citizens ha~ subsequently sued, and
the Palau courts had '"uled jn their favour. In 1987, an unconstitutional
referendum had been h\;ld, which had amended the Palau Constitution, abolishing the
75 per cent majority requirement with regard to tho nuclear-control provisiohs.
Groups of citizens hAd twice challenged the purported constitutional amendment in
lawsuits, but had had diffiCUlty finding an attorney and had Leen intimidated into
abandoning the case.

13. The Administering Authority's position was that the constitutional amendment
had been perfectly legal and that it was therefore in a position to proce~d with
completing the congressional process in Washington which was nec~sBary to bring the

/ ...



A/C. ~/"2/SR.ll
English
Page 4

(Mr. Clark)

Conpact b&tween Palau and the United States into torce. If ther~ had been any
intimidation, it arqued, that was a matter for the local autn,'rities, to whom most
powers have been delegated in fUlfilment of Trusteeship obligations. In tact, the
United States had an obligation to the United Nations pursuant to the Trusteeship
Agreement to ensure that all actions taken to terminate the Agreem8nt were in fact
.. ~ally valid. The process of relying on private c1tiz.,ns to vindicatf.! "he law had
been aborted. The administering authority must u.e its residual influenve to
reatore a climate sate for lawful dissent.

14. The Palau courts were not the guardians of the rule of law as enshrined in the
Charterl that was the duty of the United Nations itself. In November 1986, the
United States had proclaimed that it was terminating the Truateeship Aqreement in
respect of the Northern Mariana Island., the Federated states of Micronesia an.1 the
Marshall Islands. In a wri tten petition to the Trusteeship Council and in an oral
petition, the International Le6gue had argued that the ~ctions of the Administ~rinq

Authority constituted a breach of Article d3, paragraph 1, of the Charter requiring
Security COuncil's approval tor any amendment of ti,e Trusteeship Agrellment. The
Secretariat had pointed out in the ploposed programme budget for the biennium
1988-1989 (1./42/6) that no formal proposal to terminate the Agreement had yet been
submitted under Article 83. Although the United state. h&d made .on~ vague promise
to the Trusteeship COuncil to abide by its obligations under Artic!.e 83, lawyers
for the Administering Authority had continued to assert in various l~wsuits arising
out of nuclear tests in the Marshall Islands that the Trust was terminated as to
the three entities in question and that the Security Council had no role in that
endeavour.

15. The General Assembly had thl ,~wer under Article 10 of the Charter to remind
the Administering ~uthority of its obligations and should therefore take note of
the Administel"!ng Authority's intention to seek termination of the Agreement and
should urge the Admin~etering Authority to ensure that that was done in strict
conformity with the Chllrtel-. The language of paragraph 21 of draft reaolution XII
should be Btrengthened to make it plain that strict conformity with the Charter
inc1 uded seek ing the approval of the Secur i ty CO'mc 11.

16. The InteCllaUonal League challenged the Administering Authority to find a way
to vindicate the rule of law in Palau and to vindicat@ in its Territory ita own
constitutional principles, and it called upon the United Nations not to stand by in
silence as a provision of the Charter was brushed aside by one of the founding
members.

17. Mr. Clark withdrew.

18. At the invitation of the Chairman, Ms. Kircher (Minority Rights Group) took a
place at the petitioners' table.

l'.. MB. KIRCHER (Minor! ty Rights Group) Baid that in the Pl'Bt 40 ¥P"l d, a body of
international law and practice had grown up concel"ning the notion 01 sovf.'reignty liB

constituted by the consent of the world communi~y, a cOnl'lent which was largely in

I ...



A/e. t/C2/6R.ll
Ell9lish
Page OS

(Ma. Kircher)

the power 01 the United Nations General Assembly to bestow. It WllS a great
re8ponRibility to ensure that the recipients were the legitimate representatives of
the peoples of a territory, freely chosen and fully aClA)untable to the i.lhabitants.

20. The ~inority Rights Group noted with satisfaction that the General Asaembly at
its forty-first session had overwhelmingly de~ided to return New Caledonia to the
list of Non-Self-Governing Territories. At the same time, it must express its
dismay at th,~ arrogant attitude of the l'ren~h Government, which not only hsd
vigorouBly attempted to prevent N~w Caledonia's reinsertion in the list but had
also st<lted thdt it would take no notice of that deciRion. France had also
rejected the proposal in August 1987 by the Special Committee on decolonization for
a referendum on independence under Ini ted Nations super vision, and had, instead,
pushed ahebd unilaterally with ita own referendum.

21. France asserted that the issue of New Caledonia had been settled. Yet it had
imposed an electural process and a new statute on the indigenous people which
totally disregarded their right to self-determination. The proce•• had been widely
criticized by numerous French National Assembly representatives, from both the left
lInd the right, and had also been challenged bv the 13 SOuth Pacific Forum countries
which, in a meeting in February 1987, had foul,L! that the Chirac Government's
statute had clearly not met accepted United Nations principles and practices and
that the referendum had not provided a fre. and ~enuine choice of
self-determination.

22. Paragraph 8 of the Plan of Action annexed to General A.sembly r.aolution
35/118 stated that Member States must adopt the necessary measure. to dieoourage or
prevent the systematic influx of outside settlers into Territorie. under colonial
danination, which disrupted the demographic composition of those Territorie. and
might constitute a major obstacle to genuine ~elf-determination. Yet under the
so-called -Luxembourg plan- sponsored by the French ~overnment in the e.rly 1970s,
just such an influx had been encouraged, and although the Kanaka were atill the
largest ethnic group, they currently made up on·ly 43 per cent ot the population.

23. The demographic shift had been acoompanied by tile conti.nued eroaion of Itanak
control of New Caledonia's resources. Some 80 per c~nt of the Kanaka still lived
on r~servation8, and a small minority of European families controlled moat of New
Caledonia's prime Land, despite land reforma initiated by the French Government in
the early 1980s. European settlers alao controlled moat industries. Unemployment
was high &mong the Kanaks, and there were striking inequalities between the average
income of a l(aOllk and that of a European. In the educational system, although
Kanak children outnumbered European children in primary school, most high-school
graduates were ~uropean.

24. 'rh~ 1981 election of a socilll i.8t government in France had raised the
possibiHt.y of independence thro\ I negotiations. Although, in July 1983, the
French G.>vernment had recognized the Kanaks' right to independence, it had chosen
to defer any decision on New Caledonia's status for five year., a move that had led
t.o growing polit.ica1 polarization and a wave of violence. In August 1985, the

/ ...



A/C.4/42/SR.H
English
Pft9P 6

(Ms. Kircher)

French Nat ional Assembly had adopted the S(JC illll1at Gover-nment' s status proposal,
which included a new concept - independence 1n association with France - to be
voted on in a referendum by 31 December 19R?, and it had also granted greater
regional autonomy. The Front de libiration nationale Kanak socialiste (FLNKS) had
co-operated in implementing the plan, regarding it as a first step towards
independence.

25. When the Chirac Government had come to power in March 1986, however, it had
repealed that plan and had pe.Bed a new law .ubstantiAlly curtailing rugional
authority. It had al~ .trengthened the powei8 of the loyalist-controlled
Territorial Assembly and had impeded organizations furthering the interesta of the
Kanak population. Under the new law, a referendum on th. #·.ture status of New
Caledonia had been held on 13 September 1991. Unlike the referendum proposed ~J

the Socialists, the Chirac Gove~nment had left vo~ers a stark choice between
integration wi th France or full independenc(l wi th no promise of continued French
economic support. The outcome of the referendum had been a foregone conclusion,
becauae the electoral law. governing the referendum, which had enfranchised all
French citizens who had lived in the Territory fOl at least thre_ years, had
ensured a "loyalist" victory. FLNKS h~d proposed a restriction of the vote to
Kanaks and those non-Kanaks who had had at 1.aat one parent born ill New Caledonia.
The French Government's refusal to negotiate with FLNKS on that ~nd other proposals
had led FLNKS to boycott the referendum, a move aupported by the South Pacific
Forum countries. The boycott had been well-observed and non-vlolent, despite a
well-organized campaign of intimidation by pro-French militants and the brutal
disperaal by club-wielding policemen of a peaceful demonstration against_ the
referendum.

26. In the weeks prior to the referen~um, the right to free expression, assembly
and movempnt of the pro-independence activists had been severely restricted. In
August, l~e mayor of Noumea had announced a ban on all public tr~nsport services to
a Kanak suburb. Air and maritime traffic be~.Wllen Grande Tar re antl the outer
islands, inhabited predominately by Kanaks, had been curtailed. Although security
forces had broken up peaceful gatherings or~anized by FLNKS throughout ~he ialands
on 31 August, the pro-French parties and theh sympathizers had been I towed to
I~ld a large rally in the capital in Septemb~r.

21. Since the beginnillg of the referendum call'{la ign, threats and aggression aga inst
members of the press had increased. The French d~ily Le Monde report.ed that media
coverage in New Caledonia had been extremely biased against indc!pendence. The
FLNKS radio station ha~ been jammed and one of its local posts sabotaged.

28. The extreme right wing in New Caledonia had st"pped lip its ca""aign of
int.imidation and violence. Vigilante groups, responsible for: numf"!:"OU8 bomb
attacks, had emerged over the preceding years. The French populatirm in
New Caledonia included many settlers hom former French colonies whe considered the
Territory their last frontier, and had vOWld to oppose independence by all means.

/ ...



A/C. 4/42/SH.] 1
English
Page 7

29. Many Kanaks charged the French mili tary forces stationed in New Caledonia wi th
COq>licity and part 1cipat lon in anti-independence violence. On several occasiC"",s,
French ~)lice units had forcibly entered tribal aleas, ransacked houses, damaged
property and intimidat~d women and children. The French military had engaged in
the ·nanto,i!zation· of Kanak tr ihes. Mi 11 t.ary detachments had recently establ i sb.!d
caq>s in some 80 tribal areas in an attempt to curtail the influence of FLNKS, thus
interfering with traditional tribal life. De,pitl! an order to remain neutral in
the refe(endum campaign, the military had applied pressure on New Caledonians to
cast a ·Yes· vote.

30. The Minority Rights Group was particularly concerned with the double standard
of justice systemaHcally applied in New Caledonia. Klinak prisoners had gone on
numerous hunger strikes to prot~~t the disparity in visitation rights, conditionr
of detentiJn and medical care.

31. The Fabiu8 plan calling for an increased French military build-Up in New
Caledonia violated General Assembly resolution 35/118. Since 1963, France had
tested over 100 nuclear weapons in French Polynesia and had declared that it would
continue such tssts until the year 2000 despite the increasing and unllnimous
opposition of the Pacific Island nations and the ratification of a
nuclear-free-70ne treaty by the South Pacific Forum.

32. Since 1986 France had doubled its troops in New Caledonia. It had embarked on
an extensive military programme for New Caledonia, including the expansion of
Tontouta Airport to accommodate fighter and marine surveillance planes and the
construction of a military port with dockiD~ facilities for ships and submarines.
FLNKS opposed the French military build-up, and had declared its intention to
pUrllue a poEcy of non-alignment after ifld.,pendence, a posiUon shared by the Soutl.
Pac!Hc nat ions.

33. The French Government'fi1 ne., statute of internal autonomy for New Caledonia,
similar to the one in French POlynesia, was unacceptable to FLNKS. Moreover, thr
outcome of the referendum had not provided the legitimacy sought by Prime Minister
Chirac for continued rule in Nftw Caledonia. President Mitterand b levee! that as
long all blatant inequalities persisted in New (aledonia in the dillL .bution of '00
and resources, lhe civil sorvice, the leaching profes.ion and school enrolment, the
Territory had a colonial-type s\ 'us, a,~ that a statute which left New Caledonians
in their current situat ,on could ,Iave tragic consequences.

34. Although the Kanaks had repeatedly shown their willingness to engage in
dialogue, calling upon all Caledonians to work for the development of an
independent Kanaky, the ·Caldoches· (non-Kanak citizens) and the French Government
remained intransigent, thus prompting FLNKS to fore~ake non-violence.

35. Several critical areas of concern surrounded the future political statuB of
the Trust Territory of the Pacific IBlands. She urged the Special COlllllittee to
monitor vigilantly the ultilMte stage of decolonization there, and made four points
in that regard.

/ ...



A/C.4/42/SR.ll
English
Page 8

(Ma. J(ircher)

36. Fir.tly, the unilateral move to terminate the Trusteeship Agreement by
presidential Jecree, followed by congressi,)nal action prior to ratificatt,on of the
Compact of Flee Aasceiation by the peoples of the Trust T~rritory, particularly
Palau, was incompatible with the unanimous opinion of jurists, including lawyers
reaponLible for devising and adltlinistftring the termination strateqy over the
preceding 18 months.

37. Secondly, the termination of the TrustefOship Agreement did not releane the
United Nationa General Aaaembly from its obligations to the peoples of the
Territory to monitor their progress unJer the full standards of decolonization set
forth in General Assenbly resolutions 1514 (XV), 1541 (XV) and 35/118. In
particular, she suggested that the special Committee should consider the
requirements laid down in G,!neral Assembly resolution 2064 (XX) as an appropriate
model for inclusion in any resolllt ion terminating the strategic trustpeship of the
Pacific Ialands.

38. Thirdly, the future political statuses proposed for the four entities of the
strategic tru.teeahip did n~t provide for free association as enjoyed by the Cook
and Niue Island., but were vir.tually identical to the status of Puerto Rico.
Although the United State. had signed Additional Protocol I of the Treaty of
Tlatelolco, it interpreted the Treaty as not prohibiting the possession of nuclear
weapon. in the territorie. under it. contrOl, de jure or de facto, including Puerto
Rico. The United State. had claimed that the Treaty did not prohibit MtransitM or
-t.ranaportation- of vehicle. carrying nuclear weapons, although substantial
evidence revealed preparations for using Puerto Rico a$ a nuclear command and
control centre for the Caribbean and the Atlantic. The Compacts of Free
Association did not conform with resolution 35/118. They were thus inappropriate
future political statuses for such Territories.

39. Fourthly, intimidation by the Administering Authority had distorted the
process toward. decolonization of the ent i ties of the Trust Ter r itory. The
Northern Marianas Legislature had communicated to the Security Council a resolution
..eking reassurances on the limits of United States encroachments on Northern
Marianas aovereignty because of recent disputes. The Legislature pointed out that,
under the Covenant, the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands (CNMI)
retained a greater degree of inherent so ereignty than that of Puerto Rico because,
unlike Puer.to Rico. the Northern Marianas had never been a possession of the United
States subject to its broad plenary power under the territorial clause of the
United state. Constitution. In the hierarchy of dually sovereign relationships to
the Pederal Government, CNMI stood in a wholly uniq'le pollition which, hopefully,
would be fully understood by the Unite~ Nations, the United States and CHMI at the
time of termination, so that the record reflected a responsive fra~work in
anticipation of. any future dispute.. She ~lieved that the Special Committee had "
historic obligation to clarify those issu~s before termination of the strategic
truateeship was agreed to.

40. In addition, it was crit1<:al for the Special COlllllittee to consider the
information supplied by Mr. Tony A. de Brum, a member of the Cabinet of the
Government of the Republic of the Marshall Islands and an active negotiator of the

/ ...



A/C.4/4l/SR.ll
1'.0'11 iah
i>aqe 9

(MB. '(1 rchef)

Compact of Free ABBociation. According to Mr. de Brum, the United :1tatell
negotL,tors had refused to negotiate wi th the choBen repreBentat ivell of the
Marshall Islands c1ailllllnts, &00 had in.isted on including their claimll in the
negotiations on the overall Compact of Free Association.

41. During the neqotiation period, the Marshal1 Islands had ~en administered by
the High COJ1llllss10ner of thl' Tru.t Ter ri tOl·y of the Pac it ic Islands, ans_rable
only to the United Statea. Therefor~, the United States had controlled the entire
economy of the Marshal1 Islands. During that period, It had provided or withheld
funds for public purpo.e., in order to pres.ure the officials of the Islands t.:>

adopt accept~bln political positions. The United States negotiators had taken the
poaition that the: r Marshall Island. counterparts should trade otf rightEl for other
conceBsions from the Uni ted State. in other parta of tht' Compact.

42. As the United States had cOlllllitted itself to terminate the truBteeship in
1981, the Marahall Islands had begun to establi.h the infraatructur. neces.ary tor
an independent nation. Large sums of money had been borrowed for necessities not
prOVided by the United Stat... The United States had encouraged and participated
in the promotion of many project. through loan funds. As 800n as the Mar.hall
IslandB had been burdened with debt, the United Statea had broken its commitn~nt to
early termination of the trusteeship, and had refused to provide debt reliet. It
had informed the Marshall Islands that the latter had been unwise to rely on a
policy commitment from ~ preceding United States Administration.

43. Subsequently, the United State. had used the debt burden to bring pressure to
bear on the Morshall Islauds to include the nuclear provisions, in order to obtain
the promised funding. Although the Marshall IlJlands had resisted that pre••ure, it
had finally succumbed to the United States ultimatum to include thoae provision. or
to forego the Co~act and remain a ward of the United States under United Nations
truBteeship.

44. Considering that the Compact monies were estimated to provide 85 per cent of
the available funding of the Marshall I.lands, and t:lat 100 per cent of the funding
had previoualy been provided by the United S~ate., the two negotiating entities had
clearly .10t negotiated at: partty. Although the conditions favoured by the United
States had been included in the Compa~t over tha objections of the Marshall
Islands, those favoured by the latter had been ignored.

45. Cer ta in J.ndtlcements, 1.e., free inportat ion, tax COrlcftRaions and recoqni t ion
of the right of the Marshall Islands to contr~l it. own territori~l waters, had
been made to the Government of tht' Mu.hall Islands to prompt it to support the
Compoct during the plevi.cite. Neverthele•• , the Compact had pas.ed by only
52 per cent to 48 per cent. f'ollowing the plebiacite, thft Uni ted st... t •• had
unilaterally amendad the Compact, withdrawing from it those provisions intended to
induce the Islands to supp.)rt. the Compact in the plebisd.te., thereby making a
mockery of the Marshall••e people'. act of self-determination. The amended Compact
had not been presented to the people of the Mar.hall Islands fOI a new plehiscite.

/ ...



A/C.4/42/SR.ll
English
Page 10

(Ma. ICirch.!.!)

46. The un~ted States had coerced the Marshall I.lands to include the nucl.ar
pro"isions, although they were ill.gal and unca.atitutional in the Macah"ll
Ialal~s. Their deletion would have no effect on any other aspect of the Co.~act,

but would mean only that the people of the Mar.hall Islands could go forwar~ with
their clai.. in United Statea courts.,

47. The pro.pect ~~at the Marahall Islands would achieve sovereignty if it acced~d

to the numerous demanda of the United Statea had praYed illusory. Only the former
Government of the Fiji I.landa had welcomed the Mar.hall Island. to the fa~41y of
n&tion. as an ind.pende~t Bovereign Slate. On the pretext that the tru .tee~nip had
yet to be terminated, Japan had refused to negotiate reciprocal landi~g righta al~

the Asian O.,'.lopner.t Bank had denied membera. ,dp to the Mar.hall Islands.

48. The Minority Rights Group requested that the Special Committee ahould cal'ry
out Il more thorou~h inquiry into the intimid,tion ch5racterizing the process of
moving to a future political atatus in Palau since th4r president.ial a.aaa.ination
in 1985. She .u~itted a memorandum of the A••ceiate Justtce of the Supr~e court
of the Republic of Palau accepti 19 the diami••al of the ~l.intiff. in .n
intimidation suit, in which he d~nied that any intimid.tion h.d occurred. Her
group believed that internstiOllal attention was ••••nti.l for the re-e.tablishment
and protection of the legitimate righta of the indigenous people. of New C~'~donia

and P.l~u. The Unlted Nations had a histori~al oblig.tion to the K.naks and the
Micron8siano, rooted in the Declaration on the Granting of Indepe~ence to Colonial
Countries and Peoples.

49. Ms. Kirch.r withdrew.

50. At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr. Gonzilez-Gonzilez, _peaking in hi.
p.rsonal ca;~city, took a place at thp petition.r.' table.

51. Mr. GONZALEZ-~;ZALEZ r.ferr.d to th~ scor~. of recent article. and book. on
the situation in the Tru.t Territory of the Pacific I.lands. He suggest.d that a
recent film on the making of a nucl.ar-fre. Palau .hould be shown dur1ng a
aub""quent meeting of tile Fourth Committe••

52. Since 1976 the Trusteeship r.ouncil had not been repr~sentative of the united
Nations, becausa its memberahi? conaisted only of. the five perman~nt membera of the
Security Council. Although it might be said that the People'. Republic of China
repre.ented Asia, China did not in fact participate in tho Council'. work. Th.
composition of the Council included only one socialist country (the USSR), whGceas
theee were three imperialist countries (Feanc~, the United Kinydom and th. United
Sta.:ea), which were feevently united agllinat the UBt>R. The latter was clearly
v~goeoua and st.adfast in working for the right. of the people of Mioron.sia,
udfication of t~e Territory and demilitarhation of all the hland.. Yet the
United Stales continu.d to dismember the Territory, militariae the region and bring
preasuee to bear on the inhabitants to accept di.honest local plebiscites.

/ ...



AlC. 4/42/8R.11
Bnglbh
Page 11

(Mr. Gonale.-Gonules)

53. He propo_d that the clo•••t friends of China should ..rqe it to cx:cupy the
.eat on the Council forMerly occupi~d hy the puppet govern..nt of Taiwan. In
addition, consideration should bft given to increa.ing the nu.ber of .e.ber. on the
Tru.tee.hip Council, bearing in mind regialal repr~.entatJon. MoreOYer, the
Se~retary-G.neral ahol~ld be reque.ted to lend hill qoad ofUl.... to ...k a .pe~y and
jU8t solution to the problem of Microneaia. The Secretary-General w•• pre.u..bly
pupared to do 80, having alr'tady expres_d hi. foYOurabh attitude toward. the
Microneaian c~uae during a recent prea. conference.

54. On ~l Sep~ember 1984, he had .ent Cl letter to the Pre.id.nt of the Security
Council conc3r.oling the problem of Microne.ia. dix day. later, he had received a
l'vply trom the Director of the Security Council and Political Ca..ittee. Divieion.
In reply to the que.tion wl,ethu thfne WaS any regulation in tNt Security Council
a~/or the Tru.teeship Council that could prev.nt the fo~er fra. .u~itting the
report of the Tru.te••hip Council on "~crone.ia to the General Aa..~ly fo.
diacu.3ion, the Director had written that, in the 1ight of Article 13 of ~~4

::huter, there was absolutely no ba.is for such a bali••Jon. 0\ M.llber State would
ha~~ .0 raia~ the iaaue of ~icrone8ia in lhe Securi ~ Cuuncil a. a regular it•••
That could be :!one upon a special reque.t by the Tru.t...hlp Council or by the
introduction of the it.. 17. a ..ember of the Security Council or by any other Mellber
Sla.,;e. Should the i ••ue be included in the aqend.. of. the General A....bly, that
body would decide on the cou:se o! ..ction to b"! tllken.

55. He understood 'rom th,', reply that, aH:hougli i t wa~ not IIptlcifica11y .tated in
the Charter that U e Security Council .hould .end the Oer,eral b • .-bly the
Truatee.hip Counr:.l'. report on Microneaia, there wa. notJ,lirMJ to • .lY that it .hould
not do ~o. Al.o, since the que.tJ,on of Microne.ia could be dilOu.aed in the
Security Council at the requJ.t of the Tru.t.e.hip C~uncil or any State Member of
the United Nation., the Socuc1ty Council could r .....jU••t the inclu.ion in the agenda
of the General A••embly of an it.m entitled, for exa~l., -RepJrt of the
Tru8tee.hip Council to the ilerurity Council". Conaequently, lbft General A••••bly ­
and not only the Security Council and the Tru.t.e.hip Council, a. the
represontative of the United States maintained - wa. eRpowered to discu•• the
colonial qu~.tion of Micron••ia. It was of the ut.a.t i~rt.nce th,t all the
·ownera· or. internat!~nal territory, namely, t.h. 159 State. ~ber. ol the United
Nationa, should discu •• that question in depth. 'ailur. to do .0 would be
tant~nt to failure ~y rhe free countries to 3upport tte eau.. of people. still
under the colonial yoke.

57. At the invitation of the Chairman, Mi•• Qua•• (United Metho~i.t Of tic. for the
United Nations) took a place at the petitionerA' tabl••

58. Miaa QUASS (United Methodi.t Office for the United N~tion.) A.pr....d the
Office's support for the report of the Special Committee on decoloni.ation on the
Tru.t Territory of th~ Pacific I.lands (A/42/23 (Part VI». The Office had
expocience of t')e PaciUc region fla a n')n-govacl1Illental organhation 1COrking wit;'
partner churches which aaw selt-determination a. an ongoi~ proc••• for all nation••

/ ...



A/C. 4/42/BR.l '.
Engli ..'h
P.age 12

(M11I8 Quaas)

59. With regard to Pa1ftu, Article 83 uf the Charter implied that the right to
Melf-determination was to be equally applied to strategic and non-strategic areas.
Yet current United Nations practice in the only strategic Trust T~rritory appeared
to be 8ubject to a lower standard of deco10niaation than in non-strategic
Ter ri tories. Two allpecta of the decoloniaation process in Palau gave dse to
concern: fir~t, the absence of political choices for the votersJ and second, the
U8e of United N&tion8 observers to legiti~t' rather lhan safeguard
a It-determination.

60. In the six pl~i8cites on the ~ompact of Fre. Asaociation held in Palau aince
1983, there had never been a single political education campaign or A ballot
offering an option to a new version of the Compact. The ·choice· of free
association had been made by the Congress of Micronesia in 1969J the ConqreB8 had
reco..nded eHoer independence or free association for the entire Trust Tf'rritory,
and the pe~~les' representatives had chosen fr.e association as a concept not
embod!.d in a s~cific statu8 agreement. The Constitution establi8he~ in 1979 had
been confirmed by two rUlings of the Palau Supreme Oourt as the supreme law of the
land, flO that tile Compact must ronform to it. Yet the Compact had been put before
the people of Palau in six plebiscites between 1983 and 1987 in which no new
choic.s had been offered to voters. In thft two plebiscites held in 1987, vi~lent

coercion and intimidation of voters and ~h. economic crisis had further r.stricted
~hoice, despite the fact that, as stated in the report of the Special Committee on
de~~lonization (A/42/23 (Part VI). para. 126 (4», it wa. the obligation of the
Admini:~erin9Authority to enable the people to exercise, with full knowledge of
possible options, their inalienable right to 84lf-determin~tion. united State8
Public Law 99-658 clearly stated that tI~e Uni ted States Presi~ent and the Congress
must take further action to implement the Compact, after ratification by Palau.
Since then, th<tt United StateD Administration had ma.'ntained that no renegotiation
with Palau waB possible. Rf'ference to that Law's eXk'ress approval 01' the Compact
had evon ..en i~luded io the plebiscite pr.s.nted to the voters in .lune 1987,
which must have made the choice even more limited.

61. Plebiscites were regarded by the United Nations as both an instrump~t of
internal deci.ion-making and a dfllllonstratlon for outside observers of -:l1e choice
made by the people. The role of the observers sent by the Trusteeship Cauncil was
therefore of the Utmo9t imp0rtance. The mandate for the observers of the earlier
plebiscites had included the pollinq process and the obtaining of information
concerning political, economic and social develo~ents. However, the mandate for
the later plebi8cite. had referred only to the ,oting process, and the most recent
mission had not rven been directed tQ observe the campaign. That was an alarming
devalopment, since the Council knew of thd coercia1 of the voters and the
intimidation of the judicia!y. and waB also awaro that a questionable
constitutiondl ~mendmPnt proc0d8 had occurred on 4 August 1987 without Uni(ed
Nations observation. The Council had adopted two resolutions requesting ti" '",ited
StateR to i""lement the Compact with Palau d.spite the ongoing litigation whi-:h
proved ~hat it had not been ratified by Palau.

I ...



Ale. 4/42/8R.l L
Enqlieh
Page 13

62. Decisiona (lraatJ :aUy affec~ing livir.<J st.andards had beef' adopted by the Palau
Government. juat b4tt~o[t~ tht' plebiscite of .June 1987, ir. which the COJllPllct had been
r8jecte~ tor the fifth tUDe. in none of th~ plebi8cite~ had the Compact ever
received at !fast 75 per cent of the votes cast, as required by the Conatitution.

63. The recent violent intimidation in Palau h"d been c.ocumented for the
Trusteeahip CCluncil and the Security Council by members of European and Pacitic
Parliament8, and or9~ni&ations and churches throughout the world. The united
Nationa, the Admini8tering Authurity and th~ Palau autt~ritia. were equally
responsible for the paat violenc~ and for preventing any such illegal action in the
future.

64. Vigilance would be needed to ensure that illegitimate acts of
self-determination were not the basis for denying the people of Palau l~itilll.te

choices tor their tutur. political status. Peoples in other pdrts of the Truat
Territory would l1ao need expertiae and support when seeking turther
eelf-determinat ion beyond the term of tra nai ti ona] st atus agree.nt. wi th a fixed
duration. Her organization r.qJeated the Fourth Committee to work out a
relationship with other United Nations bodies so that the subatantive proviaion. of
th~ ~harter and the reaolutions on self-determination were fUlly applied even tor
the pe~le8 ot strategic Territories. If the Committee found that the Tru.teeship
Council and the Security Council had subordinated their decolonizat~on mandate to a
security mandat., it ahould act immediately to safeguard self-deter.inati~.

65. Miss Q~d.a withd~ew.

66. At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr. Tjibaou (Front de lib6ration nationale
Kanak socialist. (FLNKSII took a place al the petitioners' table.

67. Mr. TJlBAOU (Front de lib6ration nationale Kanak socialiste (?LNKS)) said
that, for the people ot Kanaky (New Caledonia), coloniaU.!"::' was not a matter of
history but a burning ia.ue involVing the theft"of their h~ritage and their
sovereignty. HQ reviewed the history of the island n&tion since it. dlecovery by
the West in the eighteenth century, and particularly oince the beginning ot French
colonial rule in 1853. Almost ill'lllediat<.~ly, the French had destroyed the
traditional way. of the Kanak people by relegat ing them to reselvations in arid or
mountai~uB regions and handing over the fertile land to French .ettler.. The
enslJing serie. of revoltB by the indigenous people had b..t!1'l bloodily tJut down over
the years.

68. France had liberalized its policy somewhat by granting su~trage to the Kanak.
in 1952, hut when the Kanak majority hl'ld elected ita first majority local
government ur.der the Autonomy Statute of 1957, De Gaulle hlld warned that the
Statute would be maintained only if the people voted to remain part ot Prance in a
forthcoming referendum. Having done so, the Kanaks had none the les8 ae.n their
hopes for political life dbshed when the Statute had, in fact, been reVOked in 1963
owing to the strategic value which Ca ledonian nick le had llcqU ired for the French
economy. Since 1963, it had been France's colonia~ policy to mak~ the Kanaka a
demographic and electoral minority and to legalize Parisian control over the
country' B essential economic, admlnl Atl Ill' ive and po Ut leal funct ions.

I . ..



A/e. 4/42/SR.ll
Engl lah
Page 14

(Mr. Tj ib.ou)

69. Although in 1983 France had recognized the right of the Kanak people to
Belf-determinatlon in theory, it had refused to take account of propo.al. made by
die Kanak political partie., which h"J then been forcllld to become more radical and,
in 1984, to bind together to form FLNKS. FLNKS h.d ooycotted the elections ot thst
year a~ mobili.ed ft nattonal r••istance. In re.ponw., the French GoveLnment had
grudgingly a9re~ to diacu.wion. on the po.sibility of eventual independance, but
tn~ sub.~u~nt Chirac Administration had reneg~d on that commitment and p••••d
another ao-called AutonOMY Stat.ute in lQ86, which had reveraed wn_tever progress
had been ..de in regional .elf-government and excluded any proviaion tor eventual
ir~ependence, turthel:1lo~e, thll St., ubt had halted the land'-re.toration progrUllle
and fo.tered an a9gres.lve policy ot recolonizl tion ot Kanak lands by French
set tlers.

70. Progre.sive circl.s in France its.lf did not support the current Government'.
dangeroua courae. FLNKS had been encourliged t:-y the regional .upport given to the
Kanak people'. cau.. by the Hllad. ot Government ot tha meri>er Statea ot the South
Pacific Forum, who in 1987 had called tor a United Nation.-sponsored ret.rendum in
the country. Moreover, the General Assembly ttselt haa, at the urging ot the
Movement ot Non-Aligned COuntrie., adopted re.olution 41/41 A, r4cognizinq that New
Caledonia 'lam a Non-Self-Governing Territory and reaffirming the Kanak people's
right to aelt-determination dnd independence.

71. France unfortunately, adopting the same di.dainful attitude towards the United
Nations as it did towards Kanaky, had refused to co-operata with the Special
Connittee on decolonization by tunllliitUng to it Lltormation on the Territory. In
Kanaky itself, it had gone ahead with the aham reterendum of September 1987, which
all the pro-independence political lDOV...nts and parties had decided to boycott,
Bince the only political education the people had received bar-orehand had been
blatant right-wing pro-union propaganda, and since the vote had been compromised in
advance by untair residency requ4r~ente and serious voting irregularities. The
I'e8ult" ot even the tainted vote ot September 1987, howv.r, had been
inconclusiv.: 83 per cent of Kanak voters had tavoured independence, while
85 per cent of non-Kanak voters had tavoured continued union with France.

72. France's control over Kanaky was a colonial occupation haaed on raciam and
represeion. FLNKS, on the other hald, stood ready to enter into a dialogue,
provided it was genuine. Moreover, as an accredited observer to the Movement of
Non-Aligned Countri .., it supported that Movement'. call for a United
Nations-apan.ored conterence on international terrorism, and it also supported the
Rarotonga Treaty, which aimed at denuclearizing the South Pacitic. FLNKS stood in
80lidarity with all tho.e Alnywhere in the world who were fighting for thfdr
independence.

73. Mr. Tjibaou with~rew.

74. At the invitatiorl ot th• ....£hairman•. Mr. LewiB (1o'riend8 of. Vanuatu) took a place
at the petition.rs' table.

/ ...



A/C.4/42/BR.11
Engl iah
Page 15

7~. Mr. LEWlS (Friends of Vanuatu) said that hie organization sought to educate
the population of North America about the countries and peoples of the South
Pacific. New CIledonia, which was b.,ing colonhed by France, had a total land IMS8

of appc~ximately 20,000 square kilometres, the main ialand was one of the large.t
islands in the bouth Pacific. Th~ ar0a oi. the sea included within the exclusive
,"conom~c ;lone mado New Caledonia one cf the richest countries in urin, minerals
and _a .Bfu, and it. land wae rich in ch'l"OIlllt, cobalt, iron and nickel, Ne",
Caledonia was, In fact, on~ of the world's leading producers of nickel. In 1983,
42.7 per cent of the population had been Kanak, 37 per cent French and
21.3 per cent of other n~tionalities.

76. The French adminiaturing Power had, in september 1987, conducted a referendum
to determine the political status CIf New Caledonia, a referendUIII which had
proceeded without the co-operation or pres.nce of the United Nationa, against the
wishes and intereste of the indigenous population, and in the pre••nc. of 8,000
French soldiera. T~e settlers had been given che opportunity to det~r.in. the
political atatus of New Caledonia, since the vast majority of the indigenous ~ople

had not participated. The r ••ults of that plebiscite represented the wiahe. of the
••ttler p'opu1ation to continue the 0010nia1 exp1oitat~on of the indigenous natural
resource. and culture. It could be that the attempt to annex New Caledonia related
also to international water routea, nuclear-wa.te disposal, nuclear teating and
foreign military basea.

77. Such a referendum and the ferce of arlla did not and would not take away the
right of the Kanak people to self-determination. Draft reB01uUon 1 of the Special
COftllli ttee on decoLonlzat ion Wild reaBOnable and stlou1d be adoptGd by the Fourth
COI1IlIitte••

78. Mr. Lewis withdrew.

AGENM ITEM 36: QUESTI~ OF NAMIBIA

Hearing of petitioners (A/C.4/42/6/Add.9 and Add.14)

79. The CHAIRMAN reminded the COIIIllittee that it had been decided to gnHt the
requeata for hearings relating to the question of Namibia contained in documents
A/C.4/42/6/Add.9 and Add.14.

SO. ~t_ l:he invitation of the Chairman, Miss Hovey (American Committee on Africa)
took a place at the petitioner.' table.

81. Mias HOVEY (American Committee on Africa) said that the newe from Namibia had
bocome even more disturhing. The refusal of the western Pow.~a to impoae mandatory
~conomic sanctions had yiven South Africa confidence in ita ability to maintain its
illegal occupation of Namibia, and it ..emed intent on deepening ita economic _"d
military dominance over neighbouring independent States. There was no evidence
that Pretoria felt sufficiently pressured to seek peace in Namibia. Inatead, it
had continued its policy of poLitical manipulation and simultaneous repreBsion.
The political ~anoeuvres harl recently involved yet anothec so-called interim

I . ..



A/C.4/42/SR.ll
Bng.lillh
~age 16

(MisB Hovey)

government, tor which the Namibian people were paying with blood and 8hatter~d

live.. Bouth Atrica'. brutal policies were aimed not only at SWAPO, but at
organi ••tioo., including the church and the qrowing tltl(!e-union IllOvement, which
played c~ntral rolea in the lives of th~ N~rr.ibian people.

82. In an dttenpt to bro&den the public base of support in the United StateB for
SWAPO and the Namibian people's struggle for independence, the American Committee
on Africa had or9ani.ed a nAtional conferonce on Namibia in Chicago in July 1987,
with the support ot the United Nations Council for Namibia. One maioe theme of the
conterence, attended by some 200 participants, had been the need for progressive
torce. within the United States labour Movement to build links of solidarity with
the Namibian labour movemant. A progrAmme of action adopted by the conterence
expresBed solidarity wi th SWAPO and demanded that the Reagan Administration should
abandon the falae doctrine of linkage, end all aid to UNITA, and impos~

comprehensive mandatory sancti~~s against Bouth Africa.

U3. In late July, more th~n 4,500 minewor~ers at the Tsumeb mines in Namibia had
gone on strike tor better living conditions, wage increases and greater Bafety, in
what had probably been the largest labour action in Namibia since 1971. Supported
by the South Afr lean-controlled courts, the company had evicted the strikers) union
leaderB and S~PO leaders had been arrested, and only after weeks of protest and
international actions had they been released in September. That strike had m!de it
cle~r to the Namibian union movement that the law would always side with the
mine-ownera. Three of the unions involved were faced with heavy court coats, and
the American Committee on Africa was seeking to respond to the appeal from the
.ineworkera for internaticnal a8sistance to help them continue their struggle.
Such support had two facets: solidarity with the liberation struggle, and the
imposition of comprehensive mandatory sanctions on South Africa by the Security
Council with the full and active HUPPOlt of the Uni ted States. Those were the
t~sks that lay ahead.

B~. ~iss Hovey withdrew.

85. At the invitation of the Chairman, Ms. Erenstein (National Lawyers Guild) took
~ ace at the petitionera' t.able.

86. Ms. ERENSTEIN (National Lawyers Guild) said that the Guild, which represented
10 000 le9/l1 peraonne1 in the United statt!s, regretted the United States
Government's failure in its legal oh1igation to work for the independence of
Nam!bia. The anti-apartheid Act of 1986, which reyuired that the United States
Government should work for the independence of Namibia, was a r3iteration of that
Government's long-.tandir~ obligation under international law. Regrettably, that
Government, and particuJ lrly the Reagan Administration, had not only failed in its
obligations, but had even flouted the rUle of law with respect to Namibia, while
giVing lip-Bervice to Namibian independence.

/ ...



A/L.4/42/SR.ll
Engl ish
Page 17

(MS. Erenstein)

87. The strategies of Pretoria and Washington were very similar. By different
means, both aimed at delaying the in(lependence of the Territory. The United States
Goverrunent's actions not only supported the policies of racist South Africa, but
lObo were at odds with the policy set forth in the anti-a,Eartheid Act and with the
legal obligations of the United States undltr international law. The Guild pledged
its support for the resolution recently introduced in the House of Representatives
with a view to reversing United States policy towards Namibia, and also for pending
lL~iBlation to impose ccmprehensive sanctions against South Africa. It would work
to pressure the keagan Administration to comply with the current sanctions law, and
would encourage ita members to work to defeat the discredited policy of
"constructive engagement" in the next presidential election. It urged the Gen~ral

Assembly not to permit itself to be held hostage by the veto power of th~ United
States and its allies, but to enact comprehensive sanctions against South Atrica
dnd take the necessary steps to enforce them.

88. Ms. Erenstein withdrew.

89. Mr. Bl~ZACKI (United States of America), speaking in exercise of the right of
reply, said that at an earlier meeting his del6gation had expressed serious
reservations with respect to the request for hearing8 related to the Tru8t
Territory of the Pacifit: Islands, because the matter should not be discussed in the
General Assemb::'y. Article 83 of the Charter clearly stated that jurit,diction
relating to strategic areas lay exclusively with the security Council a~d the
TCI"iteeship Council. The latter met every year to consider developments in the
Trust Territory, and representativeo of the peoples of that Territory had flown to
New York to appear before the Council. At those sessions, the concerns raised by
petitioners at the current meating had been expressed and res~nded to. The United
States submitted a detailed annual report on developments in the TerritorV. The
Trusteeship Council t.ad also sent vil!llting missions to Micronesia to observe the
conditions there and the various plebiscites conducted as part ot the ongoing
process of self-determination.

The meeting rose at 6.10 p.m.


